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FILED
S DISTRICT COURT

Paul M. Warner, United States Attorney
Carlie Christensen, Assistant United States Attorney (#0633)
Attorney for United States of America
185 South State Street, Suite 400
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
(801) 524-5682

lDOb JAN I 2 P $ 

DISTRICT OF UTAH

BY:
DEPUTY CLERK

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF UTAH, CENTRAL DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA Civil Action No.

Plaintiff COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENAL TIES,
INJUCTIVE, AND OTHER RELIEF

FAR WEST CREDIT, Inc.

Defendant.

Judge Tena Cambell
DECK TYE: Civil
DAI STAM: 01/12/2006 15:48:46
CASE IUER: 2:06CV0041 IC

Plaintiff, the United States of America, acting upon notification and authorization to the

Attorney General by the Federal Trade Commission ("Commission ), for its complaint alleges as

follows:

Plaintiff brings this action under Sections 5(a), 13(b), and 16(a) ofthe Federal Trade

Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U. c. 45(a), 53(b), and 56(a), and the Fair Credit Reporting

Act ("FCRA"), 15 U.S.C. 9 1681- 1681x , to obtain monetary civil penalties and injunctive or other

relieffoT defendant' s violations of the FTC Act and the FCRA.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

This Court hasjurisdiction over this matter under 28 U.S. C. g 1331 , 1337(a), 1345,

and 1355 , and under 15 U.S. c. 45(a), 53(b), 56(a), 57b , and 16815.
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Venue is proper in the United States Distrct Court for the Distrct of Utah under 28

C. ~ 1391 (b) - (c) and 1395(a), and 15 U.S.C. Section 53(b).

DEFENDANT

Defendant Far West Credit, Inc., is a for-profit corporation organized, existing, and

doing business under the laws ofthe State of Utah. Its principal place of business is located at 1214

Wilmington Avenue, Suite 101 , Salt Lake City, Uta 84106. At all times relevant to this complaint

defendant Far West Credit, Inc. , has transacted business in this district.

Defendant Far West Credit, Inc. , is a "consumer reporting agency" as that term is

defined in Section 603(f) of the FCRA, 15 U. C. 1681a(f). As part of its consumer reporting

activities, Defendant assembles or evaluates consumer credit information or other information on

consumers for the purose of fuishing consumer reports to third paries. As such, Defendant is

subject to Section 607 of the FCRA, 15 U.S.C. ~ 1681e, which imposes a series of compliance

procedures upon consumer reportng agencies.

THE FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT

TheFCRA was enacted in 1970 and became effective on April 25 , 1971, and has been

in force since that date.

Section 621 ofthe FCRA, 15 C. 9 1681s, authorizes the Commission to use all

of its functions and powers under the FTC Act to enforce compliance with the FCRA by all persons

subject thereto except to the extent that enforcement specifically is committed to some other

governmental agency, irrespective of whether the person is engaged in commerce or meets any other

jurisdictional tests set forth by the FTC Act.
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VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT

Section 607(b) of the FCRA, 15 U.S. C. 1681e(b), requires consumer reporting

agencies to follow reasonable procedures to assure maximum possible accuracy of the information

contained in consumer reports that they disseminate.

In the course of its business, Defendant creates consumer reports for use in the

mortgage industr in evaluating consumers for loans.

10. Defendant creates consumer report by purchasing information about each consumer

from Equifax Credit Information Services, Inc. , TransUnion, LLC, and Experan Inormation

Solutions, Inc. , which are nationwide consumer reporting agencies ("CRAs ) with extensive

databases on consumers, and merging this information to create a report that shows all of the

information about the consumer available at the agencies. Each line of information showing credit

status is known as a "trade line.

11. Where there is insuffcient information about a consumer, or no information, at the

CRAs, Defendant wil accept documentation ITom the consumer or other interested par on behalf

of the consumer, such as a mortgage broker or mortgage originator, purorting to show sources of

credit and credit status with businesses that do not report to the nationwide credit bureaus (e.

landlords, cable companies, utility companes

, "

rent-to-own" businesses and insurace companies).

In many instances, Defendant adds this information as a "trade line" to the report it prepares for the

consumer.

12. In the course of its business, Defendant provided consumer reports to Keystone

Mortgage and Investment Company, Inc. ("Keystone ), an Arizona originator of home loans. In the
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course of Defendant's dealings with Keystone , Keystone s employees provided Defendat with

documentation of credit accounts to be used in creating consumer reports for consumers who had

insuffcient credit histories at the nationwide CRAs. Keystone had a financial interest in the

completion of loans to these consumers.

13. The credit information provided by Keystone was not adequately reviewed and

verified by Defendant in many instances before being added to reports. In fact, the documentation

provided by Keystone for many ofthese consumers was false and presented information that called

for more careful review or inquir. For example, in many intaces the documentation related to

accounts with utility and cable companies that did not servce the areas where the consumers lived

and the same document was used to create records for multiple individuals.

14. The resulting consumer reports provided by Defendant to Keystone were used in

connection with mortgages insured by the Fair Housing Administration ("FHA") of the Department

of Housing and Urban Development ("BU"). Subsequently, some of the mortgagees defaulted

resulting in losses to the FHA home loan program and, ultimately, to taxpayers.

15. Through the acts and practices alleged in Paragraphs 9 through 13, Defendant did

not follow reasonable procedures to assure the maximum possible accuracy ofthe information in

reports that it prepared in violation of Section 607(b) of the FCRA, 15 C. 1681e(b). Pursuant

to Section 621(a)(I) of the FCRA, 15 V. C. g 1681s(a)(1), the acts and practices alleged above also

constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) ofthe FTC Act, 15 D.

g 45(a).
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CIVIL PENALTIES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT

16. Section 621(a)(2) of the FCRA, 15 U.S.C. 9 1681s(a)(2), authorizes the Cour to

award monetar civil penalties of not more than $2,500 per violation of Section 607(b).

17. Each instance in which Defendant produced a consumer report complained of herein

in violation of Section 607(b) of the FCRA, 15 U.S. C. 1681e(b), constitutes a separate violation

of the FCRA for which plaintiff seeks monetar civil penalties under Section 621 ofthe FCRA, 15

c. 1681s. Defendant has engaged in knowing violations of the FCRA as described above,

which constitutes a pattern or practice of violations.

18. Under Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 C. 9 53(b), this Cour is authorized to

issue a permanent injunction prohibiting Defendant from violating the FTC Act and the FCRA

including violations of Section 607(b).

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiffrespectfullyrequests that the Court, pursuant to 15 C. 45(a),

45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), and 16815 , and pursuant to this Cour' s own powers:

Enter judgment agaist Defendant and in favor ofplaintifIfor each law violation

alleged in this Complaint;

Award plaintiff monetar civil penalties for each violation ofthe FCRA as alleged

in this complaint;

Enjoin Defendant from violating Section 607 of the FCRA; and

Award plaintiff such additional relief as the Court deems just and proper.
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Dated: / - /2 , 20

Of Counsel:

JOEL WISTON
Associate Director for Financial Practices

PEGGY TWOHIG
Assistant Director for Financial Practices

WILIA L. HAYNS
Attorney

JAM E. HIN
Attorney
Division of Financial Practices
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Federal Trade Commission
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.
Washington, D.C. 20580
(202) 326-3224

Document 
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FOR THE UNTED STATES OF AMERICA

PETER D. KEISLER
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Division
United States Departent of Justice

PAUL M. WARR
United States Attorney
Distrct of Utah

By: 

Assistant United States Attorney
Unites States Attorney s Offce
185 South State Street, Suite 400
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
(801) 524-5682

EUGENE M. THIOLF
Director
Offce of Consumer Litigation

bFau
ELIZAB H STEIN
Trial Attorney
United States Deparment of Justice

O. Box 386
Washington, D.C. 20044
(202) 307-0066 (VOICE)
(202) 514-8742 (FACSIMILE)
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